

U.S. Department of Justice Executive Office for United States Attorneys

United States Attorneys' Bulletin

Published by:

Executive Office for United States Attorneys, Washington, D.C. For the use of all U.S. Department of Justice Attorneys

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
COMMENDATIONS	179
CASENOTES Civil Division Constitution; Commerce Clause, 21st Amendment: Fourth Circuit Upholds the Constitutionality of a Treasury Department Rule Regulating Bottle Size	101
Louis L. Goldstein, et al. v. Miller, et al.	181
Food Stamp Program; Liability of States, Rulemaking Authority: Fourth Circuit Upholds Agriculture Department Regulation Imposing Strict Liability Upon States for Losses from Food Stamps Stolen from State Custody	
Hettleman v. Bergland	181
Tucker Act; Contract Claim Jurisdiction: Fifth Circuit Rules that Suit Against HUD Seeking \$2.5 Million for Breach of Contract Lies only in the Court of Claims, Not in the District Court, Despite HUD's Sue and Be Sued Clause	
The Lomas & Nettleton Co. v. Pierce	182
Federal Tort Claims Act: District Court Holds, in Granting Government's Motion for Summary Judgment, That Plaintiff is Barred from Maintaining Tort Suit Against United States on Basis of Colorado "Statutory Employer" Doctrine	
Michael Olveda v. United States of America	183
Civil Rights Division Title VII - Discrimination in Compensation County of Washington v. Gunther	185
Executive Order 11246 Firestone v. Marshall	185
Conditions of Confinement Ruiz v. Estelle	185
Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act, As Amended Uvalde Consolidated Independent School District v. United States	186



II VOL. 29

MARCH 13, 1981

18 U.S.C. Section 1581 (Hobbs Act) United States v. <u>Hanigan</u>	186
Land and Natural Resources Division Condemnation; Deposit of Estimated Just Compensation; Review of Commission's Findings	
United States v. 9.20 Acres in Polk County, Iowa (Walker)	187
Indians; Government Has Burden of Proving Indians' Noncompliance to Qualify for Allotment Right <u>Antoine v. United States</u>	187
Indians; Referendum Procedures to Establish New Constitutions for Choctaws and Chickasaws Ordered Morris v. Andrus; Cravatt v. Andrus	188
Clean Water Act; Injunction Mandatory for Violation of Act <u>Carlos Romero-Barcelo</u> v. <u>Harold Brown</u>	189
Irrigation Right-of-Way; Secretary of the Interior has Authority to Impose Reasonable Environmental Conditions When Issuing Them <u>Grindstone Butte Project</u> v. <u>Kleppe</u>	189
Endangered Species Act; Action by Endangered Species Authority Allowing Export of Bobcats Reversed Defenders of Wildlife v. Endangered Species Scientific Authority	190
National Environmental Policy Act and National Historic Preservation Act; Possibility for Future Federal Action Insufficient to Federalize Project National Trust for Historic Preservation v. Adams	191
National Environmental Policy Act; No Right to Jury Trial in NEPA Case; Plaintiff has Burden of Proof on Whether EIS is Adequate	
Russ v. Texas	192
Possibility of Reverter Does Not Reopen When State Transfers Jurisdiction to Federal Government United States v. 31.72 Acres in Leelanau County, Mich. (Rohns)	192
United States v. 51.72 Acres in Leerandu County, Mich. (Rollins)	192

Page

MARCH 13, 1981

Page

Administrative Law; Exhaustion of Administrative Remedies; Regulations Requiring Claimant to File Current Address Bars Due Process Claim Wesley Laverne Edwards v. United States	193
Mootness; National Historic Preservation Act Historic Green Springs, Inc. v. Virginia Vermiculite, Ltd.	193
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Act Buck Austin v. Andrus	194
Preliminary Injunction Denied Against Oil and Gas Drilling in National Forest Mattis v. Andrus	194
Indians; Heirship Determination Under 25 U.S.C. 372 Unreviewable	10/
Hudson v. United States SELECTED CONGRESSIONAL AND LEGLSLATIVE ACTIVITIES	194 197
APPENDIX: FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE	201
These pages should be placed on permanent file, by Rule, in each United States Attorney's office library.	

NO. 6

COMMENDATIONS

Assistant United States Attorney MARIA T. ARROYO-TABIN, Southern District of California, has been commended by Ms. Lucy Zorich, Supplemental Security Administration Investigator of the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare. Ms. Arroyo-Tabin's preparation and her execution showed her to be a most competent advocate in obtaining a conviction in the case of United States v. Andre Testman which involved proving multiple identities.

Assistant United States Attorney EDMUND A. BOOTH, JR., Southern District of Georgia, has been commended by Colonel George W. Harrell, Department of the Army. Mr. Booth's outstanding devotion to duty, professionalism and competence in the support that he rendered in the recent litigation involving the American Federation of Government Employees was greatly appreciated. Mr. Booth was called upon to defend the actions of the Army involving the contracting out of base operations support functions at Fort Gordon.

United States Attorneys JAMES C. CISSEL, Southern District of Ohio, and JAMES R. WILLIAMS, Northern District of Ohio, have been commended by Mr. Harvey Wax, District Counsel. Both Mr. Cissel and Mr. Williams have been commended for their timely and very efficient manner in providing all the services needed to protect the best interests of the Veteran's Administration.

Assistant United States Attorney DON ETRA, Central District of California, has been commended by Mr. Ralph H. Erickson, Assistant Regional Administrator, Securities and Exchange Commission. Mr. Etra's fine work in the case of <u>United States</u> v. <u>Nick Troy (Pre-Builder Land Corp.)</u> resulted in the most satisfactory sentences which were obtained in this aging and very challenging criminal fraud.

Assistant United States Attorney GEORGE D. HARDY, Southern District of California, has been commended by Mr. R. G. S. Young, Deputy Regional Administrator, U.S. Department of Transportation. Through Mr. Hardy's fine efforts, International Distributing Company entered guilty pleas to nineteen (19) counts of violating its Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations and paid a fine of \$9,500.00.

Assistant United States Attorney STEVEN O. KRAMER, Central District of California, has been commended by Mr. Ronald E. Saranow of the Internal Revenue Service. Mr. Kramer's preseverence, dedication and cooperation in an in-depth investigation into the misuse of public funds at the Greater Los Angeles Community Action Agency resulted in successful convictions. MARCH 13, 1981

Assistant United States Attorneys ARLENE LINDSAY and BILL CUNNINGHAM, Eastern District of New York, have ben commended by Mr. V. A. Johnson, Assistant Finance Officer of the Veteran's Administration. Both Ms. Lindsay and Mr. Cunningham's sincere dedication and professionalism projected the image that public service definitely needs.

Assistant United States Attorney VIRGINIA MATHIS, District of Arizona, has been commended by Mr. Timothy T. Tuerck, Regional Counsel, Department of the Treasury. Ms. Mathis represented the government with a consistent and thorough professionalism in the case of <u>Simon Perri, Jr., etc.</u> v. <u>Dept.</u> <u>of Treasury, etc.</u>, which resulted in the Ninth Circuit's affirmed decision of the District Court which revoked the firearms license issued to Simon Perri.

Assistant United States Attorney BRIAN MCCONATY, District of Colorado, has been commended by Judge Sherman G. Finesilver. Mr. McConaty's work product evidenced excellent advocacy, professionalism and thorough preparation in the case of <u>United States of America</u> v. <u>James Orlando Quintana</u>. The case involved a single defendant; an earlier companion case involved other defendants. A substantial amount of narcotics was involved. The jury returned verdicts of guilty on several charges.

Assistant United States Attorney ELLEN SCHANZLE-HASKINS, Central District of Illinois, has been commended by Mr. Robert B. Davenport, Special Agent in Charge of the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Ms. Schanzle-Haskins' efforts in her preparation and presentation in the case of <u>Charles Calvin</u> <u>Lockhart; et al Fraud Against the Government- U.S. Department of Agriculture</u> (<u>Women, Infants, & Children</u>) resulted in a clear and convincing case to the jury leading to a successful conclusion.

CIVIL DIVISION

Acting Assistant Attorney General Thomas S. Martin

Louis L. Goldstein, et al. v. Miller, et al., C.A. 4 No. 80-1326 (February 3, 1981) D.J. # 145-3-2213); Overbrook Egg Nog Corp., et al. v. Miller, et al., C.A. 4 No. 80-1327 (February 3, 1981) D.J. # 145-3-2214)

> CONSTITUTION; COMMERCE CLAUSE, 21ST AMENDMENT: FOURTH CIRCUIT UPHOLDS THE CONSTITUTIONALITY OF A TREASURY DEPARTMENT RULE REGULATING BOTTLE SIZE

In these consolidated appeals, the Fourth Circuit affirmed the decision of the district court sustaining the constitutionality of a Treasury Department regulation that eliminated all but six prescribed sizes of liquor bottles for use in domestic commerce. The State of Maryland, a liquor bottler and a liquor distiller sued Treasury, claiming that Treasury's regulation constituted the regulation of intrastate liquor sales that was both unauthorized by the Commerce Clause and contrary to the Twenty First Amendment (which repealed Prohibition and gave states the authority to regulate intrastate liquor sales). In a ruling now approved by the Fourth Circuit, the district court held that the regulation constituted a revenue protection measure authorized by the internal revenue laws (and not a Commerce Clause regulation) that is fully consistent with the Twenty First Amendment, since that amendment never purported to constitute a limitation upon Congress' power to tax liquor, but rather was intended to constitute a limitation only upon Congress' powers under the Commerce Clause.

> Attorney: Mary McReynolds (Civil Division) FTS 633-1672

<u>Hettleman</u> v. <u>Bergland</u>, C.A. 4 No. 80-1076 (February 17, 1981) D.J. # 147-35-19

> FOOD STAMP PROGRAM; LIABILITY OF STATES, RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: FOURTH CIRCUIT UPHOLDS AGRICULTURE DEPARTMENT REGULATION IMPOSING STRICT LIABILITY UPON STATES FOR LOSSES FROM FOOD STAMPS STOLEN FROM STATE CUSTODY

In a unanimous decision that stands to save the Federal Government \$25-30 million, the Fourth Circuit reversed the decision of the district court invalidating as unauthorized by statute an Agriculture Department regulation that imposed strict liablity upon states for losses due to theft of food stamps from state custody.

The Fourth Circuit held that the regulation was well within the authority conferred on the Secretary of Agriculture by the Food Stamp Act of 1964, since that Act broadly authorized the Secretary to promulgate those regulations "necessary or appropriate" for the "effective and efficient" administration of the Food Stamp Program. The Fourth Circuit deemed the regulation to be a "valid and reasonable" exercise of the Secretary's rulemaking authority since "it [the regulation] is certainly justifiable as administratively precise and simple, it places responsibility for loss on the party in the best position to protect against it, and it is not an unduly harsh remedy . . . "

> Attorney: Mary McReynolds (Civil Division) FTS 633-1672

<u>The Lomas & Nettleton Co.</u> v. <u>Pierce</u>, C.A. 5 No. 79-3562 (February 9, 1981) D.J. # 145-17-1836

> TUCKER ACT; CONTRACT CLAIM JURISDICTION: FIFTH CIRCUIT RULES THAT SUIT AGAINST HUD SEEKING \$2.5 MILLION FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT LIES ONLY IN THE COURT OF CLAIMS, NOT IN THE DISTRICT COURT, DESPITE HUD'S SUE AND BE SUED CLAUSE

The National Housing Act states that the Secretary of HUD may "sue and be sued" in carrying out his responsibilities under the Act (12 U.S.C. 1702). A HUD agency, the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), is subject to a similar "sue and be sued" provision. Here, a mortgage investing corporation sued the Secretary of HUD and GNMA on the ground that GNMA had reneged illegally on a contractual obligation to sell a package of mortgages which ultimately appreciated in value by more than \$2,000,000. The suit was filed in federal district court in The district court dismissed the suit on the ground that Texas. the Tucker Act requires breach of contract actions seeking more than \$10,000 to be brought in the Court of Claims. The Fifth Circuit has just affirmed, and ordered the transfer of the case to the Court of Claims. The Court held that the "sue and be sued" clauses relate only to suits seeking moneys within HUD's control and from a fund devoted to the subject matter of the suit. Where, as here, the suit seeks pure breach of contract damages from the government, the Court indicated that only the Tucker Act provides redress. The Court thus disagreed with the D.C. Circuit, which in an unpublished order rejected the government's Tucker Act argument in a case all but identical to the present one, and in a full opinion went on to rule against the government on the merits of the breach of contract issues (Molton, Allen & Williams v. Harris).

> Attorney: John Cordes (Civil Division) FTS 633-4214

VOL. 29



MARCH 13, 1981

NO. 6

183

CIVIL DIVISION Acting Assistant Attorney General Thomas S. Martin

Michael Olveda v. United States of America, United States District Court, Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Division, Civil Action No. M-78-10-CA (February 17, 1981)

FEDERAL TORT CLAIMS ACT: DISTRICT COURT HOLDS,
IN GRANTING GOVERNMENT'S MOTION FOR SUMMARY
JUDGMENT, THAT PLAINTIFF IS BARRED FROM
MAINTAINING TORT SUIT AGAINST UNITED STATES ON
BASIS OF COLORADO "STATUTORY EMPLOYER" DOCTRINE

The District Court granted the Government's Motion for Summary Judgment in this radiation exposure case filed pursuant to the Federal Tort Claims Act. The exposure occurred at the Rocky Flats Plant near Boulder, Colorado. The plant was operated by Dow Chemical Company pursuant to a contract with the United States. Dow was an independent contractor of the United States. Plaintiff was an employee of Dow. Colorado State Workmen's Compensation Law incorporates the "statutory employer" doctrine which provides that a general contractor shall have the same immunity from tort suits enjoyed by the actual employer. 'immunity is given to general contractors in return for the This ultimate responsibility imposed upon them to insure that workmen's compensation insurance has been purchased by their independent contractors. The general contractor, under Colorado law, is then considered to be the 'statutory employer" of the employees of the independent contractor. In this case, the United States paid for workmen's compensation insurance as an allowable cost under the contract with Dow. Consequently, the District Court held that the United States, Plaintiff's "statutory employer" under Colorado Workmen's Compensation Law, was immune from Plaintiff's tort suit.

Attorneys: William J. Cornelius, Jr. Assistant U. S. Attorney Tyler, Texas FTS 749-6054 Don Jose Civil Division, Torts Branch FTS 724-6795 185

VOL. 29

March 13, 1981

CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION Acting Assistant Attorney General James P. Turner

County of Washington v. Gunther, No. 80-429 (D. Oregon) DJ 170-61-21

Title VII - Discrimination in Compensation

On February 10, 1981, we filed in the Supreme Court an amicus brief in support of respondents. Our brief argues that women have the same protection under Title VII against discrimination in compensation that other protected groups have. We argue that the Bennett Amendment to Title VII does not diminish that protection; rather it gives employers certain limited defenses under Title VII that employers have under the Equal Pay Act.

> Attorney: Neil H. Cogan (Civil Rights Division) FTS 633-3068

Firestone v. Marshall, No. B-80-499-CA (E.D. Tex.) DJ 170-75-42

Executive Order 11246

On February 12, 1981, the district court entered an order, vacating the Secretary of Labor's debarment of Firestone, and remanding the case to the Secretary for further proceedings. The Secretary had found that Firestone at its facility in Orange, Texas, had failed to declare underutilization in accordance with the DOL interpretation of Revised Order No. 4, and had failed to establish a goal and failed to establish action-oriented programs to eliminate the underutilization. The district court reversed the Secretary on the grounds that the DOL interpretation of underutilization was a regulation, which under the APA should have been published for comment to be effective. The court also held that the failure to establish action-oriented programs was insufficient by itself to justify debarment.

> Attorney: Gerald George (Civil Rights Division) FTS 633-4134

Ruiz v. Estelle, CA No. 878987 (S.D. Tex.) DJ 144-75-1523

Conditions of Confinement

On February 18, 1981 the parties filed a consent decree, which addresses a substantial portion of the litigated issues.

186

VOL. 29

March 13, 1981

The defendants have agreed that the prison medical health care delivery system will meet standards of and will be accredited by the American Medical Association. The problems of special needs prisoners (handicapped) will be addressed with individual treatment plans. Architectual modifications to prison facilities will be made to provide handicapped prisoners access to program and activities. Other provisions set a limitation on the length of solitary confinement and eliminated the use of a restricted diet for those in solitary. The defendants will develop standards for the use of chemical agents and adopt the Federal Bureau of Prisons work safety and hygiene program for training and inspections. It is anticipated that the court will approve and enter the consent decree.

> Attorney: David Vanderhoof (Civil Rights Division) FTS 633-4577

Uvalde Consolidated Independent School District v. United States, No. 80-1237 (W.D. Tex.) DJ 169-76-67

Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act, As Amended

We filed in the Supreme Court on February 19, 1981, a memorandum in opposition to the petition for certiorari. The petitioners assert that the court of appeals erred in reversing the dismissal of our complaint and in holding that Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act, as amended, prohibits a school board's purposeful dilution of the voting rights of Mexican Americans through use of at-large elections.

> Attorney: David Marblestone (Civil Rights Division) FTS 633-4492

United States v. Hanigan, No. CR 79206TUC-RMB (D. Ariz.) DJ 144-8-488

18 U.S.C. Section 1581 (Hobbs Act)

On February 23, 1981 Pat Hanigan was convicted of violating 18 U.S.C. Section 1581 (Hobbs Act). Pat and Tom Hanigan were charged with abusing and torturing three aliens who had crossed the border onto the Hanigan's property. Tom Hanigan was acquitted. The case was tried before separate juries for each defendant. The first trial resulted in a mistrial when the jury was unable to reach a verdict. Sentencing of Pat Hanigan is scheduled for March 30, 1980.

> Attorney: Linda Davis (Civil Rights Division) FTS 633-3204

MARCH 13, 1981

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION Acting Assistant Attorney General Anthony C. Liotta

United States v. 9.20 Acres in Polk County, Iowa (Walker), F.2d , No. 80-1427 (8th Cir., January 7, 1981) DJ 33-16-248-438.

Condemnation; deposit of estimated just compensation; review of Commission's findings.

In this condemnation case, the Eighth Circuit affirmed the district court's adoption of the commission's findings in favor of the government. The court reiterated established principles of condemnation law, holding that the sum that the government pays into the court registry needs to be no more than an estimate of just compensation; that the court's scope of review of a condemnation commission's report is limited to deciding whether the report was "clearly erroneous" and whether the factual findings are within the "scope of the evidence"; that the preferred method of measuring damages in partial taking cases is to value the remaining parcel before and after the taking; that the term "severance damages" is misleading; and that the value of a mineral deposit may be considered only to the extent that it affects the overall market value of the property.

> Attorneys: Robert D. Clark and Edward J. Shawaker (Land and Natural Resources Division) FTS 633-2855/2813

Antoine v. United States, F.2d ____, No. 80-1143 (8th Cir., January 12, 1981) DJ 90-2-4-447.

Indians; Government has burden of proving Indians' noncompliance to qualify for allotment right.

In this Indian allotment case, the Eighth Circuit, reversing the district court, placed the burden on the government to prove that an Indian had not complied with a treaty condition of continued cultivation to maintain a land selection, on the ground that the government has better access to BIA records. Accordingly, it remanded to permit the government to attempt to prove noncultivation. Crucial to the court's decision is the fact that BIA apparently did not ask the Indian claimant's ancestors for any proof of cultivation when it made

L

NO. 6

inquiries in 1915 into the status of the land selection. The court interpreted the term "selection" in the Sioux Allotment Act of 1889 and held that unless the government can prove that the Indians did not keep the land under cultivation between the time of the land selection under the treaty and the passage of the Act, the savings clause in the Act caused a ratification of the claim.

> Attorneys: Robert D. Clark and Jacques B. Gelin (Land and Natural Resources Division) FTS 633-2855/2762

Morris v. Andrus; Cravatt v. Andrus, F.2d , Nos. 79-2127, 2776 (D.C. Cir., January 27, 1981 DJ 90-2-4-510

Indians; referendum procedures to establish new constitutions for Choctaws and Chickasaws ordered.

In these consolidated cases, individual members of the Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations sued the Secretary of the Interior and the governing bodies of their respective Indian tribes, to enforce certain provisions of the tribal constitutions adopted in the 19th Century. While these suits were pending in district court, members of both tribes in tribal referendum elections voted in favor of adopting new tribal constitutions. The district court found that the election procedures conformed to the standards announced in an earlier case, Harjo v. Andrus, 581 F.2d 949 (D.C. Cir. 1978), and dismissed the cases as moot. The court of appeals, remanding with instructions, concluded that the tribal referendum procedures were deficient in failing to inform voters in detail, pinpointing the nature and extent of differences between the 19th Century constitutions and the proposed constitutions. Accordingly, the court of appeals concluded that the referendum procedures not met the standards of Harjo. The court instructed the district court to "establish appropriate procedures," complying with Harjo, "for the conduct of new referendum elections" setting forth detailed balloting and voter-education procedures with "cooperation from appropriate federal government officials in the conduct of the referendum elections, but with safeguards to protect self-determination in the constitutional reform process." The court of appeals, however, rejected the plaintiffs' claim that the 19th Century constitutions, and the defunct institutions thereunder, had to be revitalized so as to prevent any constitutional change by referendum elections.

> Attorneys: James Brookshire, David Redmon and Dirk D. Snel (Land and Natural Resources Division) 633-5390/4400

VOL. 29

Carlos Romero-Barcelo v. Harold Brown, F.2d , No. 79-1626 (1st Cir., January 26, 1981) DJ 90-1-4-1806.

Clean Water Act; Injunction mandatory for violation of Act.

The First Circuit affirmed in part and reversed in part a decision of the District Court of Puerto Rico concerning the Navy's use of the Island of Vieques for air-to-ground, naval gunfire support and amphibious training. The court of appeals affirmed the district court's rejection of challenges based on the Military Construction Authorization Act, several sections of the Rivers and Harbors Act, Puerto Rico state water quality standards, the Noise Control Act, and regulations governing the restriction of navigable waters. The First Circuit remanded issues involving the Endangered Species Act for consideration of post-trial biological opinions and issues involving the National Historic Preservation Act, and also ruled that the district court erred in balancing the equities in devising a remedy for a violation of the Clean Water Act. The court ruled that injunctions to remedy such violations were mandatory, under the standards of TVA v. Hill, 437 U.S. 163 (1978), and remanded to the district court for entry of such an injunction. We have filed a petition for rehearing on the mandatory injunction issue.

> Attorneys: Anne S. Almy and Edward J. Shawaker (Land and Natural Resources Division) FTS 633-4427/ 2813

<u>Grindstone Butte Project v. Kleppe</u>, F.2d ____, No. 78-1134 (9th Cir., January 30, 1981) DJ 90-1-4-1508.

Irrigation Right-of-Way; Secretary of the Interior has authority to impose reasonable environmental conditions when issuing them.

An applicant for irrigation rights-of-way over federal lands challenged the authority of officials of the Department of the Interior to impose any conditions, including conditions designed to protect the environment, other than those expressly stated by the 1891 statute. The district court granted summary judgment against the Interior officials. The Ninth Circuit reversed, holding that the 1891 Act and particularly NEPA "demonstrate a continuing congressional commitment to protect the public interest in federal lands and resources" and thus authorize the Secretary to impose reasonable terms and conditions, necessary to protect the

public interest, on irrigation rights-of-way granted under the 1891 statute.

> Attorneys: Jacques B. Gelin, Robert W. Frantz and Dirk D. Snel (Land and Natural Resources Division) FTS 633-3762/ 4400

Defenders of Wildlife v. Endangered Species Scientific Authority, F.2d, Nos. 79-2512, 80-1044, 80-1083 and 80-1084 (D.C. Cir., February 3, 1981) DJ 90-8-6-3.

Endangered Species Act; action by Endangered Species Authority allowing export of bobcats reversed.

Plaintiff challenged actions taken by the Endangered Species Scientific Authority (ESSA) and the Interior Department's Fish and Wildlife Service responsible under international treaty -- the Convention on International Trade in Endangered Species of Wild Fauna and Flora (CITES) -- for regulating the export of bobcat and other species listed in Appendix II of CITES. An Appendix II species may not be exported unless a "scientific authority" of the exporting country -- ESSA in the United States -- determines that such export will not be detrimental to the survival of the species. The treaty also requires that a "management authority" -- the Fish and Wildlife Service in the United States -- must be responsible for issuance and control of export permits once ESSA has made its "no detriment" finding and must be "satisfied" that the specimen to be exported was not obtained contrary to applicable domestic law. Four counts of the complaint alleged that the Fish and Wildlife Service had failed to perform various duties and enforcement functions under CITES; the court of appeals affirmed the dismissal of these four counts, largely for lack of proof occasioned by plaintiff's failure to submit a discovery deposition into evidence.

The claims against ESSA, however, were disposed of differently. Under challenge was ESSA's determination that the export of bobcat, trapped or hunted during the 1979-1980 season in 34 States and the Navajo Nation, would not be detrimental to the survival of that species. After a trial, the district court enjoined bobcat exports from five States and portions of two others but denied all other relief. On appeal, the court of appeals, reversing, declared that ESSA's guidelines for obtaining data in support of its "no detriment" findings were invalid, apparently under the arbitrary and capricious standard of review set forth in 5 U.S.C. 706(2)(A) of the

APA and thus were contrary to CITES. ESSA's guidelines were deemed deficient because they did not require a "reliable estimate of the number of bobcats" or "information concerning the number of animals to be killed" in a given season. Without such information, no valid "no detriment" finding could be made. The court recognized that taking a bobcat census by "head count" would be "virtually impossible." Nevertheless, it did conclude that indirect indices of population trend information (such as age structure, harvest data and distribution, and habitat evaluation), which the guidelines permitted, provided insufficient data. The court of appeals remanded with instructions that the district court review whether ESSA's "no detriment" findings for each jurisdiction were supported by "reliable population estimates."

> Attorneys: Dirk D. Snel, Edward J. Shawaker and Kenneth Berlin (Land and Natural Resources Division) FTS 633-4400/2813/2716

National Trust for Historic Preservation v. Adams, F.2d No. 80-1022 (4th Cir., January 23, 1981) DJ 90-1-4-1924

National Environmental Policy Act and National Historic Preservation Act; Possibility for future federal action insufficient to federalize project.

The Fourth Circuit affirmed the district court's judgment, dismissing a suit to enjoin the removal of 28 trees along a state highway in South Carolina for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. Plaintiffs alleged federal involvement in the State's highway project, such that the requirements of NEPA and the National Historic Preservation Act should have been complied with. The court of appeals found the possibility of future federal participation in projects for this highway too remote to require compliance with the federal Acts. There was also no evidence of deliberate circumvention of the Acts by the State, by such methods as diversion of federal funds to other state projects, or segmentation of the project into state and federally funded parts. The court of appeals also found the bond of \$56,000 required for a stay pending appeal was not excessive, in light of how much more each year's delay in construction cost the State.

> Attorneys: Laura Frossard and Edward J. Shawaker (Land and Natural Resources Division) 633-2753/2737

VOL. 29

192

VOL. 29

MARCH 13, 1981

Russ v. Texas, F.2d , No. 79-1539 (5th Cir., December 19, 1980) DJ 90-1-4-1952.

National Environmental Policy Act; No right to jury trial in NEPA case; Plaintiff has burden of proof on whether EIS is adequate.

The plaintiff filed a complaint challenging the adequacy of an EIS prepared by the FHWA for a project to widen and improve 52 miles of an existing highway in West Texas, and sought a preliminary injunction enjoining the project. The district court ordered consolidation of the hearing on the preliminary injunction with the trial on the merits, and found the EIS adequate. The court of appeals, in an unpublished opinion affirming the district court, held that there was no right to a jury trial for NEPA cases, and that the plaintiff has the burden of proof on the issue of whether the EIS was inadequate.

> Attorneys: Laura Frossard and Jacques B. Gelin (Land and Natural Resources Division) FTS 633-2753/2762

United States v. <u>31.72 Acres in Leelanau County, Mich. (Rohns)</u>, F.2d , No. 80-1303 (6th Cir., January 21, 1981) DJ 33-23-759-1045.

Possibility of reverter does not reopen when State transfers jurisdiction to federal government.

Property was conveyed by the defendants' predecessor to the State of Michigan with the provision that the land was to be used for a "public state park," with a reverter in the event of discontinuation of such use. In 1975, the State of Michigan granted jurisdiction over the subject parkland to the National Park Service, which operates it as a public campground. The heirs of the grantor argued that the possibility of reverter ripened when jurisdiction was transferred. The district court disagreed, and the court of appeals affirmed.

Attorneys:

Thomas L. Riesenberg, A. Donald Mileur and Edward J. Shawaker (Land and Natural Resources Division) FTS 633-4519/2813

Wesley Laverne Edwards v. United States, F.2d ____, No. 79-4183 (9th Cir., February 6, 1981) DJ 90-1-5-1720.

Administrative Law; Exhaustion of administrative remedies; regulations requiring claimant to file current address bars due process claim.

In a contest proceeding, a hearing examiner issued an order cancelling Edwards' homestead entry to 160 acres near Carson City, Nevada. Edwards did not appeal to IBLA, as Interior's regulations required, but instead sought judicial review in United States District Court, which granted summary judgment against him for failure to exhaust his administrative remedies. By memorandum decision, the Ninth Circuit affirmed. The court also rejected Edwards' argument that he had been denied due process based on Edwards' assertion that he had received no notice of the adverse decision and of the right to appeal it. Pursuant to its regulations, the Department of the Interior had notified both Edwards and his attorney at the record address and, if it was outdated as Edwards claimed, he was required to provide Interior with a correct one.

> Attorneys: Jacques B. Gelin and James T. Tomkovicz (Land and Natural Resources Division) FTS 633-2762

Historic Green Springs, Inc. v. Virginia Vermiculite, Ltd., F.2d , Nos. 80-1822 and 1823 (4th Cir., January 27, 1981) DJ 90-1-4-1621.

Mootness; National Historic Preservation Act.

The district court had determined that Interior's designation of the Historic Green Springs District was procedurably defective and thus invalid. The Fourth Circuit granted, in part, the government's motion to dismiss on ground by remanding the case to the district court with instructions for it to determine whether the case had been rendered moot by passage of Section 201 of the National Historic Preservation Act Amendments of 1980, which provides that all historic properties listed in the Federal Register of February 6, 1979, are declared by Congress to be National Historic landmarks.

> Attorneys: Nancy B. Firestone and Anne S. Almy (Land and Natural Resources Division) FTS 633-2757/4427

Buck Austin v. Andrus, F.2d ____, No. 78-1896 (9th Cir., February 2, 1981) DJ 90-2-4-421

Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Act.

The Ninth Circuit affirmed the district court's granting of summary judgment for the United States, in finding that members of the Navajo Indian Tribe who were dispossed by Peabody Coal Company were not "displaced persons" within the meaning of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition of 1970. The court held that the Act required that displacement result from a written order to vacate issued by a federal or state agency.

> Attorneys: Maria A. Iizuka and Robert L. Klarquist (Land and Natural Resources Division) FTS 633-2753/2731

<u>Mattis v. Andrus</u>, F.2d , No. 79-3116 (9th Cir., December 17, 1980) DJ 90-1-18-1332.

Preliminary injunction denied against oil and gas drilling in national forest.

Oil and gas lessees of national forest land sought a preliminary injunction against Interior's and Agriculture's refusal to issue drilling and special use permits. The denial was based on the lessee's failure to propose adequate protection against interference with a critical habitat of the California condor, an endangered species. The district court denied the injunction because the leases expressly required protection of the condor habitats, the lessees failed to demonstrate abuse of administrative discretion, and the leases expired by their own terms before the court's decision. In an unpublished memorandum, order the court of appeals affirmed.

> Attorneys: United States Attorney Andrea S. Orlin, Jerry J. Jackson and Robert L. Klarquist (Land and Natural Resources Division) 633-2772/2731

Hudson v. United States, F.2d ____, No. 79-4305 (9th Cir., February 10, 1981) DJ 90-1-4-452.

Indians; heirship determination under 25 U.S.C. 372 unreviewable.

The Ninth Circuit, in a brief memorandum opinion, affirmed the district court's dismissal, for lack of federal subject matter jurisdiction, of an action to review an Indian heirship determination of the Secretary of the Interior under 25 U.S.C. 372. Under 25 U.S.C. 372, heirship determinations are not subject to judicial review. The only recognized exception to this prohibition is when a party raises a constitutional challenge to the Secretary's decision, which was not done in this case.

> Attorneys: Nancy B. Firestone and Robert L. Klarquist (Land and Natural Resources Division) FTS 633-2757/2731

MARCH 13, 1981

VOL. 29

OFFICE OF LEGISLATIVE AFFAIRS Acting Assistant Attorney General Michael W. Dolan

SELECTED CONGRESSIONAL AND LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES

FEBRUARY 18, 1981 - MARCH 3, 1981

Subcommittee Authorization Hearings. The Subcommittee on Courts, Civil Liberties and the Administration of Justice, chaired by Congressman Kastenmeier, has scheduled hearings through the month of March dealing with the Department's authorization. Bureau of Prisons Director Carlson and Parole Commission Chairman McCall have been scheduled for March 5; AAG Maurice Rosenberg, OIAJ, Acting Director William Tyson, Executive Office for United States Attorneys, and Director William Hall, U. S. Marshals, are scheduled for March 12. Also tentatively scheduled for the weeks of March 23 and 30 are two days of hearings on the creation of a Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. Other issues of interest to the Department tentatively planned for consideration later this spring in the Subcommittee are Supreme Court jurisdiction, technical amendments to the Equal Access to Justice Act, eliminating diversity of citizenship jurisdiction, and creation of a State Justice Institute.

The Subcommittee on Administrative Law and Governmental Relations, chaired by Congressman Danielson, has scheduled for March 5 an oversight hearing on the Department's Civil Division. Other priorities of the Subcommittee of interest to the Department include regulatory reform, Federal Tort Claims Act amendments, extending the Indian claims statute of limitations, and oversight of the Ethics in Government Act.

On March 12, Acting Assistant Attorney General, Civil Rights Division, James Turner is tentatively scheduled to testify before the House Judiciary Subcommittee on Civil and Constitutional Rights, chaired by Congressman Don Edwards, to discuss Civil Rights Division authorization matters. Gilbert Pompa, Acting Director of the Community Relations Service, will appear before the same Subcommittee on March 18 for CRS's authorization hearing.

<u>Constitutional Amendments</u>. The Department is currently reviewing numerous proposed constitutional amendments in order to respond to requests for views from the Senate Judiciary Committee. In particular, the Subcommittee on the Constitution, chaired by Senator Hatch, has tentatively scheduled for March 21 hearings on a constitutional amendment to balance the budget, which is apparently one of the Committee's highest priorities. This amendment failed to clear the Senate Judiciary Committee in the 96th Congress by only one vote.

NO. 6

VOL. 29

INS Efficiency Package. The House Judiciary Subcommittee on Immigration, Refugees, and International Law wants to move promptly on the proposed INS Efficiency Act and has scheduled hearings on the legislation for March 24. The Efficiency bill was proposed by the previous Administration early in the 96th Congress. The proposal was widely regarded as a necessary, noncontroversial revision of several provisions of existing immigration law so as to improve the efficiency and productivity of the INS. Unfortunately, consideration of the bill was delayed first by inertia and later by a controversial amendment by Senator Kennedy to increase immigration quotas for Mexican nationals. The House version, H.R. 7273, passed that body in December of 1980. The Senate bill, S. 1763, was reported out of committee in July of 1980, but never reached the Senate floor.

The Department will soon forward a refined version of the Efficiency bill to OMB for clearance and subsequent submission to the 97th Congress. Given the thorough consideration of this legislation by both the House and Senate Judiciary Committees in the last Congress, it is reasonable to anticipate prompt enactment in the 97th Congress.

Authorization. The Department's authorization bill for fiscal year 1981 was never enacted as such. Instead the Congress enacted Public Law 96-397, which continues the authorities contained in the Department's FY 1980 authorization bill until April 5, 1981 (180 days from the date of enactment of P.L. 96-397). All indications are that the House and Senate Judiciary Committees will opt to simply extend the continuing resolution until the end of FY 1981.

DEA Intelligence Authorization. The House Intelligence Committee held hearings on February 24, 1981, on the subject of the Drug Enforcement Administration's intelligence authorizations. Peter Bensinger, Administrator of DEA, testified on behalf of the Department.

Select Committee on Narcotics. The House Rules Committee approved H. Res. 13, reconstituting the Select Committee on Narcotics Abuse and Control and the full House approved the resolution on February 25. Leo Zeferetti of New York is expected to be Chairman.

Juvenile Justice Restitution Programs. The House Education and Labor Subcommittee on Human Resources held a hearing on juvenile justice restitution programs on March 3, 1981. Charles Lauer, Acting Administrator of LEAA, testified on behalf of the Department.

MARCH 13, 1981

NO. 6

<u>Radio Deregulation Act of 1981</u>. S. 270, the Radio Deregulation Act of 1981, is under consideration by the Subcommittee on Communications of the Senate Commerce Committee. The Department of Commerce testified on Thursday, February 26, 1981. This legislation is being closely studied by the Antitrust Division, the Civil Rights Division and the Office of Legal Counsel. The Department will most likely make a formal comment to the Subcommittee.

Energy Policy and Conservation Act. The Department of Energy has drafted legislation that would extend for one year Section 252(j) of the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (EPCA). Section 252(j) affords an antitrust defense to U. S. oil companies participating in the International Energy Program (IEP). Without this defense, U. S. oil companies would likely cease all assistance to the International Energy Agency. The draft bill extends the provision to December 31, 1981. Richard J. Favretto, Acting Assistant Attorney General, Antitrust Division, testified before the Senate Committee on Energy and Natural Resources on March 2, 1981, concerning this legislation.

Procurement Debarment and Suspension Procedures. JoAnn Harris, Chief, Fraud Section, Criminal Division is scheduled to testify before the Subcommittee on Oversight of Government Management of the Senate Governmental Affairs Committee on federal debarment and suspension procedures. The FBI will also participate in these hearings.

March 13, 1981

Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure

Rule 11(e)(1). Pleas. Plea Agreement Procedure. In General.

Defendant pled not guilty, was convicted and sentenced to three consecutive four year prison terms. On appeal he unsuccessfully contended that the trial court erred in rejecting his plea agreement with the prosecutor, pursuant to which he would have pled guilty to a portion of the charges in exchange for probation. The record showed the judge had participated in plea discussions outside the courtroom on at least two occasions, including informing defendant if he pled guilty to two counts he would be sentenced to four years on one and probation on the other. The Court of Appeals raised this issue <u>sua sponte</u>.

The Court of Appeals held that the judge's participation constituted a serious violation of Rule 11(e)(1) which states: "The Court shall not participate in [plea] discussions." The Court concluded that since defendant pled not guilty and made no showing of prejudice, he should not receive a new trial but should be resentenced before a different judge.

(Affirmed in part, reversed in part, and remanded.)

United States v. James Edward Adams, 634 F.2d 830 (5th Cir. January 19, 1981)

201

March 13, 1981

VOL. 29

Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure

Rule 12(e). Pleadings and Motions before Trial; Defenses and Objections. Ruling on Motion.

Following a mistrial due to the jury's inability to reach a verdict, the Government filed a motion to admit into evidence at retrial certain tape recordings which the district court had excluded at the first trial. The district court deferred until trial its ruling on this motion. Both the Government and the defendant contended that the district court must rule on a pretrial motion to admit evidence, prior to jeopardy attaching.

The district court, after a lengthy hearing mandated by the Court of Appeals, concluded that the motion should be deferred. The court held that it had "good cause" as required by Rule 12(e) because evidence presented at a pretrial hearing on a motion to admit, unless the motion were denied with prejudice, would have to be repeated at trial. This would result in a precedent that would place an imprudent imposition on the limited resources of the judicial system. The court further held that deferral would not be precluded by Rule 12(e) on the ground that it would adversely affect the appeal rights of the Government since a non-substantive determination to defer for good cause any ruling on the Government's motion until trial was not "a decision or order suppressing or excluding evidence" within 18 U.S.C. 3731.

(Ordered accordingly.)

United States v. John R. Barletta, 500 F.Supp. 739 (D. Mass. November 3, 1980)

NO. 6

DOJ-1981-03